7 SEPTEMBER 2015

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the New Forest District Council held in the Council Chamber, Appletree Court, Lyndhurst on Monday, 7 September 2015

- * Cllr Mrs A J Hoare (Chairman)
- * Cllr G C Beck (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

- * A R Alvey
- * Mrs D E Andrews W G Andrews
- * P J Armstrong
- * Mrs S V Beeton Ms R Bellows
- * Mrs S M Bennison
 - J E Binns
- * G R Blunden
- * D A Britton
- * Mrs D M Brooks
- * Mrs F Carpenter
- * Mrs L D Cerasoli
- * S J Clarke
- * Mrs J L Cleary I C Coombes Ms K V Crisell
- * S P Davies
- * A H G Davis
- * W H Dow
- * Ms L C Ford
- * R L Frampton
- * A T Glass
- * L E Harris
- * M R Harris
- * D Harrison
- * J D Heron
- * E J Heron
- * Mrs M D Holding

Councillors:

- * Mrs P Jackman
- * M J Kendal
- * Mrs E L Lane
- * Mrs P J Lovelace
- * B D Lucas
- * Mrs A E McEvoy
- * A D O'Sullivan
- * J M Olliff-Cooper
- * N S Penman
- * A K Penson
- * DMSPoole
- * L R Puttock
- * B Rickman
- * W S Rippon-Swaine
- * Mrs A M Rostand
- * D J Russell
- * Miss A Sevier
- * M A Steele
 - M H Thierry
- * Mrs B J Thorne
- * DBTipp
- * D N Tungate
- * A S Wade
- * R A Wappet
- * J G Ward
- * Mrs C V Ward
 - M L White
- * C A Wise
- * Mrs P A Wyeth

Officers Attending:

D Yates, R Jackson, J Mascall, Miss G O'Rourke and Ms M Stephens.

Apologies:

were received from Cllrs W. G. Andrews, Ms Bellows, Binns, Coombes, Ms Crissell and White.

^{*}Present

22 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2015 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllrs Frampton, Harrison, E J Heron, Mrs Jackman, Rickman and Mrs Wyeth disclosed non-pecuniary interests in respect of minute No 26, Item 2 of the Report of the Cabinet dated 2 September 2015.

24 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman had attended a variety of events since the last Council meeting and these had been reported in the latest Information Bulletin.

New Forest Show 2015

The Chairman congratulated and thanked officers for their enthusiasm and commitment in successfully promoting the Council's Health and Leisure Centres at this year's show. The Council's stand had been another excellent example of the work of the Council's leisure staff and the amazing variety of services the Council's Leisure Centres had to offer.

New Forest Art Society

That Chairman had had the privilege to attend a preview for the New Forest Art Society's exhibition at Lyndhurst Community Centre on 8 August. The standard of the works had been excellent, showing there to be a lot of artistic talent in the New Forest.

Merchant Navy Day

On Thursday 3 September, the Chairman had been pleased to raise the Merchant Navy Day flag at Appletree Court, Lyndhurst. The Chairman had been accompanied by the Vice-Chairman, Cllr Beck, the Leader of the Council, Cllr Rickman and the Chief Executive. Cllr Ms Ford and Cllr Johnston from Hythe & Dibden Parish Council had also been present.

Civic Day

The Chairman would be holding her civic day on Tuesday, 6 October, when other civic heads from Hampshire, Dorset and the Isle of Wight would be shown the attractions of the New Forest District. The theme of the day would be Culture, Sport and Education. Guests would be taken to St Barbes Museum in Lymington, Brockenhurst College and Southampton Football Club's new Marcus Liebherr training ground in Marchwood.

Village of the Year Award 2015

The Chairman announced that Sway village were finalists in the 2015 Village of the Year competition. Judging had already taken place, with Hampshire Association of Local Councils making the final decision. The winners would not be known or formally announced until the award ceremony on 7 October. The Chairman wished Sway village luck in the competition.

Lord Montagu of Beaulieu

The Chairman referred with sadness of the sudden death of Lord Montagu. Lord Montagu's work with the Historic Monuments Commission and the National Motor Museum in Beaulieu had been outstanding. He was a much loved figure within the New Forest who would be missed.

25 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader of the Council spoke about the Council's response to the plight of refugees.

He explained that the Council was closely following discussions between the Local Government Association and Central Government on the terrible humanitarian crisis that was occurring. The Council would play its part in any nationally agreed and co-ordinated response. The Council was still awaiting details on how Councils could best be involved. Members would be updated when more was known about the Government's plans for an effective scheme of support.

26 REPORTS OF CABINET

Cllrs Frampton, Harrison, E J Heron, Mrs Jackman, Rickman and Mrs Wyeth disclosed non-pecuniary interests in Item 2 of the Report of the Cabinet dated 2 September 2015 as members of the New Forest National Park Authority, the other party to the Service Level Agreements. Each concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent them from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

The Leader of the Council, as Chairman of the Cabinet, presented the reports of the meetings held on 5 August and 2 September 2015.

On the motion that the reports be received and the recommendations adopted:

Item 1 – (2 September 2015) – Hampshire & Isle of Wight Devolution Proposal Cllr Harrison commented on the prospectus that had been prepared for submission to Ministers to support the bid for devolved powers for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. He said that whilst additional powers would be of benefit to local communities, balancing the needs and demands of both the urban and rural areas would pose a challenge. He felt that any move toward a 'super' mayor should be discouraged.

Cllr E Heron, in welcoming the views of Cllr Harrison, said that as the issue was still at the earliest stages of the process, it was difficult to form a definitive picture of the impact the proposals would have on the area. Detailed discussion, including the need for a 'super mayor', would take place once any Government offer was known.

RESOLVED:

That the reports be received and the recommendations be adopted.

27 APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE (HEAD OF THE COUNCIL'S PAID SERVICE)

RESOLVED:

That Robert Jackson, the Council's Executive Director (Section 151 Officer), be appointed as the Council's Chief Executive and Head of the Council's Paid Service with effect from 24 October 2015.

28 QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 22

There were none.

29 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS UNDER STANDING ORDER 22A

There were none.

30 DELEGATION OF POWERS TO OFFICERS - SMOKE FREE LEGISLATION

RESOLVED:

That the change in the delegation of powers to officers as set out on the agenda summons be agreed.

31 CHANGE OF MEETING DATES 2016/17

RESOLVED:

That the meetings of the Council scheduled for 5 September and 5 December 2016 be moved to 12 September and 12 December 2016.

32 MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES AND PANELS

No changes to committees or panels were proposed by the political groups.

Chairman